CERTIFICATE FOR ORDER

THE STATE OF TEXAS	§
	§
COUNTY OF BASTROP	§

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Bastrop County Municipal Utility District No. 1, hereby certify as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of Bastrop County Municipal Utility District No. 1 convened in regular session on May 7, 2021, and the roll was called of the members of the Board:

Steven Adamcik	President
Linda F. Roberts	Vice President
William Tullis	Secretary
Jerry B. Patterson	Assistant Vice President
Jane T. Sevier	Assistant Secretary

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written

AMENDED RATE ORDER

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the order be adopted, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the order, prevailed and carried unanimously.

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid order adopted at the meeting described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; the action approving the order has been duly recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated therein; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the order would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; the meeting was open to the public as required by law; and public notice of the time, place, and subject of the meeting was given as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code, as suspended by the Governor of the State of Texas.

SIGNED AND SEALED on May 7, 2021.

/s/ William Tullis Secretary, Board of Directors



BASTROP COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1

AMENDED RATE ORDER

and

Regulations Regarding Water and Sewer House Lines and Connections

(Effective April 9, 2021)

WHEREAS, Bastrop County Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the "District") operates a water and sewer system to provide service to residential and commercial establishments within the District (the "System"); and

WHEREAS, it is necessary that fees, charges, and conditions be established for service from the District's System; and

WHEREAS, the District has been asked by the State Legislature to adopt and implement a program of water conservation aimed at reducing the consumption of water, reducing the loss or waste of water and improving efficiency in the use of water; and

WHEREAS it is the District's intent to establish rates for service from the District's System that will encourage sound management of the District's water usage and conservation practices by Users within the District; and

WHEREAS the escalating rates for increased water usage herein adopted by the District are intended to promote conservation and efficient management of the District's water resources; Now, Therefore,

BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BASTROP COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 THAT:

<u>Section 1</u>: <u>Definitions</u>. The following words or phrases shall have the meanings indicated below:

- A. "Single Family Residential User" means a user of the District's System that consists of one residence designed for use and occupancy by a single family unit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to a User that combines two or more adjacent lots for one homesite, please see Section 2.I. below.
- B. "Non-Single Family Residential User" means any user of the District's System other than a Single Family Residential User including, but not limited to, commercial establishments, and multi-family dwelling units.
- C. "Non-Taxable User" means any user of the District's water and sewer system other than a Single Family Residential User or a Non-Single Family

Residential User that is exempt from ad valorem taxation by the District under the Property Tax Code, including, but not limited to, schools and churches.

D. "Grinder Pump" - means the grinder pump, tank, and related facilities installed and maintained by the District on the User's premises as described in this Rate Order.

Section 2: Tap and Inspection Fees

- A. <u>Interim Tap Fee</u>. During the initial period of the operations of the District, the District will be supplied water under pressure pursuant to a water supply contract between the District and Aqua Water Supply Corporation. So long as such contract requires the payment of a \$2,400.00 Capital Replacement Fee or similar charge (the "Aqua Fee") for each connection supplied thereunder, the District's tap fee shall equal the Aqua Fee to be paid by the District under such contract. Upon commencement of operation of the District's storage and pressurization facilities and the termination of the obligations of the District with respect to the Aqua Fee, this subsection shall be terminated, and the District's tap fee shall be determined with reference to the remainder of this Section.
- B. <u>Single Family Residential Users</u>. Prior to connection to the District's System, a tap fee as set forth herein shall be paid to the District to cover the cost of making said connection and the cost of providing the water meter. In the case of a 5/8 inch water meter, the tap fee shall be \$2,315.00. In the case of a water meter larger than 5/8 inch, the tap fee shall be determined by the District.
- C. <u>Grinder Pump Fee</u>. Prior to connection to the District's System, a grinder pump fee as set forth herein shall be paid to the District to cover the District's cost of the purchase and installation of the required Grinder Pump as described in Section 23.G, excluding service lines. In the case of a Grinder Pump described in Section 23.G., the Grinder Pump fee is initially determined to be \$6,200.00, plus any extra pipe or other special or unanticipated costs. The homeowner will be responsible for the payment of any costs of installation of the sewer line connection from the District's line to the grinder pump that is over fifty feet, including the cost of equipment and labor, as determined by the District's operator. Only the District's operator will be authorized to make such installation and connection to the District's sewer system.

D. <u>Non-Single Family Residential Users</u>. Prior to connection to the District's water system a tap fee shall be paid to the District equal **to two (2) times the** District's actual cost of installing the tap, meter, and necessary service lines, and repairing or restoring any yards, sidewalks, streets, landscaping, concrete or other improvements, affected by the installation shall be paid to the District (the "Installation Costs"). The District's operator will notify the User of the Installation Costs.

Connections to the District's water system shall not be allowed prior to an approved sewer inspection, and all such connections shall be inspected by the District's operator or its subcontractor.

- E. <u>Non-Taxable Users</u>
 - (1) Non-taxable Users shall pay a tap fee equal to the District's actual cost of installing the tap, meter and any necessary service lines and the cost of repairing or restoring any yards, sidewalks, streets, landscaping, concrete or other improvements affected by the installation (as determined by the District's operator, together with the District's consultants) plus the District's actual cost of the facilities necessary to provide District services to the Non-Taxable User that are financed or to be fully or partially financed by the District's tax bonds (as determined by the District's consultants and approved by the Board of Directors) (the "Installation Costs").
 - (2) The District's operator, together with the District's consultants, will determine the Installation Costs, which will then be approved by the Board of Directors and be paid by to the User.
- F. <u>Sewer Connection Inspection</u>. All connections to the District's sewer system shall be made in accordance with the District's Plumbing Code. All connections to the District's sewer system shall be inspected by a representative of the District prior to being covered in the ground. In the event a sewer connection is made and covered without inspection by a representative of the District, water service at such location shall be terminated. An inspection fee of \$75.00 per Single Family Residential connection, \$75.00 per Non-Single Family Residential connection and \$75.00 per Non-Taxable connection shall be paid to the District. If a sewer connection fails the inspection, an additional inspection at the same rate is to be paid prior to reinspection.
- G. <u>Pre-Facility Inspection</u>. All builders or contractors for property owners within the District must contact the operator, prior to starting any work on property within the District, to do an inspection to verify District facilities.

If any District facility is either damaged or cannot be located, the operator will make necessary repairs or locate the facility and make it visible at the expense of the District. A copy of the inspection will be given to the builder's or contractor's representative. After the inspection and any necessary work is completed, the builder or contractor will then be responsible for paying the costs of all damages, adjustments, relocations and repairs found during the Final Site Survey. The cost for each inspection is \$25.00.

- H. Facility Inspection. After construction has been completed on the property, but before service is transferred to a User, the District's operator will conduct a Final Site Survey to reinspect the water tap, meter and all other District facilities on the property for a fee of \$25.00. (The \$25.00 fee shall be collected at the time the tap fee is paid.) The property owner, builder or contractor will be held responsible for any damages or adjustments to District facilities and the cost of repairing, adjusting or relocating the facilities (the "Backcharges") before service shall be initiated to a User. If any re-inspections of the facilities are required to ensure that the District's facilities are repaired, relocated or adjusted, a fee of \$25.00 shall be charged for each such re-inspection before service will be transferred to a subsequent User. Payment of the Backcharges, or any \$25.00 inspection or re-inspection fees, shall be made on or before the 30th day after the date of the invoice for said charges. The District may withhold the provision of service to the property or to other property owned by any User, property owner, builder or contractor who has failed to timely pay the Backcharges or any \$25.00 inspection or re-inspection fee, including specifically the provision of additional taps; provided, however, the District shall follow the notification procedures set forth in this Rate Order prior to withholding the provision of service.
- I. <u>Combination of Adjacent Lots for Residential Home Site</u>. This provision shall be effective as of April 9, 2021. If after April 9, 2021, a Single Family Residential User combines two or more adjacent lots in the District for use as the site of one single family residence, the District will assign each lot an account and each account will be charged the "minimum monthly charge for single family equivalent connection," the "sewer (flat rate)", and the "grinder pump maintenance charge" as provided in Section 5 of this Rate Order, as amended from time to time, in addition to the fees for water usage and regardless of the number of meters, taps and grinder pumps installed at the residence. The District's operator will determine the number of water meters, taps and grinder pumps required for the residence based on the specifications of the residence and other factors deemed relevant by the District's operator.

Section 3: Platting and Permit Requirements

- A. <u>Permit Requirement</u>. Before any connection is made to the District's System, the person requesting such connection shall provide to the District a copy of: (1) any necessary development or building permit from the County; or (2) a waiver for any development or building permit from the County.
- B. <u>Platting Requirement</u>. Prior to initially connecting to the District's System, a User shall submit to the District's operator proof that the User's property has been platted in accordance with the subdivision ordinances of the City of Bastrop. Acceptable proof of platting includes a copy of the recorded plat, or a certificate from the City of Bastrop that the property has been platted or that the property is legally exempt from the platting process.

<u>Section 4</u>: <u>Regulatory Assessment</u>. Pursuant to the Texas Water Code, each user of the District's water and sanitary sewer system is hereby assessed a charge of one-half of one percent of the District's charge for water and sewer service. This assessment is not included in the rate schedules listed below. Each use shall be billed, in addition to the water and sewer rates set forth below, this regulatory assessment, and the collected regulatory assessment will be forwarded to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, as required by the Texas Water Code, and used to pay costs and expenses incurred in its regulation of water districts.

Section 5: Water and Sewer Rates

<u>User Fees</u>. After initial connection, each User within the District shall be charged for service on a monthly basis according to the volume of water used and in accordance with the following schedule:

Amount of Payment	Water and Sewer Usage
\$55.00	Minimum monthly charge per single family equivalent connection as determined by the District's engineer
\$ 4.00	Water rate per 1,000 gallons metered water for usage between 1 gallon and 7,000 gallons
\$ 4.50	Water rate per 1,000 gallons metered water for usage between 7,001 and 15,000 gallons
\$ 5.00	Water rate per 1,000 gallons metered water for usage between 15,001 and 25,000 gallons

\$ 5.50	Water rate per 1,000 gallons metered water for usage of 25,001 gallons and above			
\$25.50	Sewer (flat rate)			
\$35.00	Grinder pump maintenance charge per residential unit			

Section 6: Temporary Water Service

- A. The District's operator shall be authorized to make a temporary connection to any fire hydrant or flushing valve upon receipt of a written request for temporary water service. Such temporary service shall be supplied only through a District meter installed by the District's operator.
- B. The person applying for temporary water service shall be required to deposit \$1,500.00 with the District to secure the payment for water supplied by the District and the safe return of the District's meter. Upon receipt of full payment for temporary water used and return of the meter in good condition, the deposit will be returned; provided, however, any damage to the meter or unpaid balances will be paid from the deposit.
- C. The fee for temporary water service shall be \$50.00 for costs of installation plus \$5.50 per 1,000 gallons of water delivered through the meter.
- D. A temporary water rate of \$5.50 per 1,000 gallons of water delivered through the meter shall be charged, upon request of the property owner, to the five lots where homes burned during the 2011 Bastrop fires, located at 175 Colovista Parkway, 156 Riverwalk, 361 Tall Forest, 160 Colovista Parkway and 128 Riverwalk, until such time as the lot is sold or construction of a new home begins. The minimum monthly charge for water is suspended for these properties only until such time as the lot is sold or construction of a new home begins.

<u>Section 7</u>: <u>Public Spaces</u>. Water service will be provided to public esplanades, lakes, recreational areas or green spaces ("Public Spaces") within the District at a rate of \$0.45 per 1,000 gallons of water usage per month. In order to promote conservation of the District's water supply, however, Public Space users will pay an increased rate to be set by the District if the District determines that the Public Space user's water usage is excessive, inefficient, and/or wasteful. All such Public Spaces shall be required to have meters, which shall be installed by the District's cost to install the tap and meter.

<u>Section 8</u>: <u>Surcharge for Service</u>. In fairness to all Users of land within the District, and to honor its contractual obligations and commitments, the District has the right to monitor the use of water and the discharge of sewage to determine if Users are exceeding the amount of capacity committed to serve their land or buildings. As one method of enforcement, the District has determined to reserve the right to impose a surcharge on any User who uses water or discharges sewage in excess of the amount reserved to such User or tract. Accordingly, in addition to the other charges specified herein, the District has the right to impose an additional charge of \$0.05 per gallon of water used in excess of one hundred ten percent (110%) of the amount of capacity reserved to the tract by any utility commitment letter.

<u>Section 9</u>: <u>Grease Trap and Sampling Well Inspections</u>. For each grease trap and sampling well installed, there shall be charged a semi-annual flat rate inspection fee of \$35.00. If the operator is required to reinspect the grease trap or sampling well, such reinspection shall be charged at the same \$35.00 rate.

<u>Section 10</u>: <u>Swimming Pool Inspections and Fee</u>. Every User who plans to construct or install a swimming pool within the District shall notify the District's operator in writing prior to commencing construction of the pool. Upon notification by the User of the intention to construct or install a swimming pool, the User shall pay an inspection fee of \$50.00. After the notification is received, the District's operator shall ensure that all drains from the swimming pool are connected to the District's sanitary sewer system. After the drains have been installed, the User shall notify the District's operator, who shall make an inspection of all swimming pool drains to verify that the proper connection is made, before service is authorized for said swimming pool.

Section 11: <u>Maintenance and Repair</u>. It shall be the responsibility of each user to maintain the water and sewer lines from the point of connection to the District's System to the building served.

A. <u>Homeowner Expenses Associated with Grinder Pump Failure</u>

With respect to expenses associated with grinder pump failure, the District's liability shall be limited to repair or damages to equipment (not landscaping) from the grinder pump to the main line in the street and on to the wastewater treatment plant. The District will be responsible for the repair or replacement of the pump itself, unless there is proof of homeowner negligence. When pump damage is clearly due to homeowner negligence, e.g. – flushing inappropriate items or physical damage such as lawn mower damage, the homeowner will be liable for repair or replacement of the grinder pump system and the required labor. Expenses between the grinder pump system and the home are the responsibility of the homeowner. In the event of wastewater line blockage, the homeowner is expected to contact the operator and stop further wastewater use until

the operator has responded. The homeowner is expected to realize that continued use will likely result in further damage to their home and/or property which would be the liability of the homeowner, not the District. The District operators' phone number, (512) 402-1990, is listed on the customer's monthly bill and is answered 24 hours a day.

Section 12: Termination

- А. Charges for service shall be billed monthly. All bills shall be payable on the 20th day after the date of the statement for said charges. Unless payment of the monthly bill is received on or before the 45th day after the date of said statement or unless payment of any Backcharges is received on or before the 30th day after the date of the invoice, such account shall be considered delinquent and interest of ten percent (10%) of the unpaid balance shall be charged. The District may, in its discretion, disconnect service for failure to pay all charges and Backcharges, including interest, by the 60th day after the due date; provided, however, that prior to disconnecting services, the District shall send written notice by United States first class mail to the User or entity at the appropriate address and provide the User or entity with an opportunity to contest, explain or correct the charges, services, or disconnection, at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the District. The written notice shall inform the User or entity of the amount of the delinquent payment, the date service will be disconnected or additional service withheld if payment is not made, the date, time and place of the next scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors, and of the opportunity to contest, explain or correct the charges, services, or disconnection, by presenting in person or in writing such matter to the Board of Directors at the next scheduled meeting as shown on the notice. The date specified for disconnection shall be the date of the next scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors as shown in the notice. The notice shall be deposited, postpaid, in a post office or official depository under the care and custody of the United States Postal Service at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors. A written statement by the District's operator that the notice was so mailed and a certificate of mailing by the United States Postal Service shall be prima facie evidence of delivery of same. If the User or entity appears before the Board in person or in writing, the Board shall hear and consider the matter and inform the User or entity of the Board's determination by sending written notice by United States first class mail to the User or entity at the appropriate address.
- B. <u>Door Hanger and Utility Payment Pick-up Fee</u>: Users will be charged a fee of \$10.00 for hanging a door hanger termination notice and a fee of \$10.00 if the District's operator is asked to pick up the User's utility payment.

- C. Any person, corporation or other entity who violates any provision of this Rate Order, in addition to being subject to the penalties described in this Rate Order, shall be subject to having service terminated; provided, however, that prior to disconnecting service for such violations, the District shall give written notice by first class mail or otherwise, to such person, corporation or other entity, of the pending disconnection, and shall give such person, corporation or other entity the opportunity to contest, explain or correct the violation of the Rate Order at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the District. Such disconnection shall be in addition to penalties that may be imposed by the District under this Rate Order.
- D. If service to a User is disconnected for nonpayment of a delinquent bill or for any cause legally authorized, a reconnection fee of \$55.00 (\$65.00 after hours and \$75.00 on holidays) plus a security deposit of \$100.00, payable in accordance with this Rate Order one time after service is terminated, shall be paid prior to service being restored. Payment of fees and charges under this Section must be in the form of cash, cashier's check, or money order.
- E. In the event that the District's operator removes a User's meter due to unauthorized reconnection of service subsequent to its termination by the District, a reinstallation fee of \$55.00 shall be paid prior to service being restored, which fee is in addition to any other fees imposed.

<u>Section 13</u>: <u>Termination of Service Upon Request of User</u>. Whenever a User of District services temporarily or permanently abandons the structure or building receiving service and no longer wishes to be serviced, he or she shall notify the District's operator at least two (2) days prior to the time he or she desires service to be discontinued. The District shall charge such User \$20.00 for discontinuing and \$20.00 for restoring service if such service is discontinued or restored at the request of the User and he or she is not delinquent in the payment of any bill at the time of the request.

<u>Section 14</u>: <u>After-Hours Service Charge</u>. Any User who requests the District's operator to disconnect or reconnect service during non-business hours (i.e. Saturdays and Sundays and after 4:00 p.m. on weekdays) will be charged an after-hours service charge of \$40.00.

Section 15: <u>Returned Check Charge</u>. The District will charge a \$25.00 fee to any customer for each check given to the District for payment that must be returned for any reason. Payments attempted to be made by a check which is returned shall be considered delinquent unless cash or certified funds are presented to the District for payment within the time period required by the previous section.

<u>Section 16</u>: <u>Security Deposit</u>. All Single Family Residential Users requesting service will be charged a \$250.00 security deposit. All Non-Single Family Residential

Users requesting service will be charged a security deposit equal to \$75.00 for each equivalent single family connection (as determined by the District's engineer). All builders requesting service will be charged a security deposit equal to \$250.00 for each residential connection. Each time service to a User subsequently is disconnected for any cause, or the User receives more than three delinquency notices, the User shall pay to the District, in addition to the initial deposit and any reconnection fee required herein, an additional deposit of \$100.00 for each Single Family Residential User and \$75.00 per equivalent single family connected to the District's system, up to a maximum deposit with respect to that address of \$550.00 for a Single Family Residential User and \$150.00 per equivalent single family connection for a Non-Single Family Residential User, before service is again commenced at such location to such customer. No interest will be allowed on such deposit. Such sum shall be held by the District as a deposit to assure prompt payment of all charges for water and sewer service.

<u>Section 17</u>: <u>Transfer Fee</u>. A fee of \$15.00 shall be charged by the District to cover the expense to the District for the transfer of water and sewer service from the initial User to each subsequent User.

<u>Section 18</u>: <u>Easements</u>. Before service is commenced to any User, the person requesting such service shall grant an easement of ingress and egress to and from the meter for such maintenance and repair as the District, in its judgment, may deem necessary.

<u>Section 19</u>: <u>Pressure of Water</u>. The District agrees to use all reasonable efforts to supply to any User adequate pressure of water. The District does not and will not guarantee to any User a specific quantity or pressure of water for any purpose whatsoever. The District is required only to furnish a connection to its System and in no case shall the District be liable for the failure or refusal to furnish water or any particular amount or pressure of water; however, the District shall use reasonable efforts to supply water to all Users at an acceptable minimum pressure.

<u>Section 20</u>: <u>No Free Service</u>. No free service shall be granted to any User for services furnished by the District's System whether such User be a charitable or eleemosynary institution, a political subdivision or municipal corporation, and all charges for service shall be made as required herein.

<u>Section 21</u>: <u>Required Service</u>. No new service shall be given from the District's System unless such User agrees to take both water and sewer service, except in those instances where the Board determines that both services are not necessary for the preservation of the sanitary condition of water within the District. <u>Section 22</u>: <u>Water regulations</u>. The following plumbing regulations apply to all Users of the District's potable water distribution system.

- A. <u>Service Agreements.</u> Prior to receiving service from the District to new construction or to buildings containing new plumbing fixtures, or prior to having service reconnected to any building after termination of water service, a User must execute a Service Agreement in the form attached to this Rate Order as Exhibit A. The District will charge each User a one-time administrative fee of \$15.00 for the Service Agreement.
- B. <u>Plumbing Fixtures.</u> A User is not permitted to install any plumbing fixture which is not in compliance with a state approved plumbing code and the plumbing code, if any, required by the County of Bastrop.
- C. <u>Prohibition Against Water Contamination.</u> No direct connection between the District's potable water distribution system and a potential source of contamination is permitted. Potential sources of contamination shall be isolated from the District's potable water distribution system by the installation of an air-gap or an appropriate backflow prevention device in accordance with state plumbing regulations. In addition, all pressure relief valves and thermal expansion devices must be in accordance with state plumbing codes and the plumbing code, if any, required by the County of Bastrop.
- D. Backflow Prevention Assemblies. All sprinkler systems, spas and pools must have backflow prevention assemblies installed by the User at the User's sole cost and expense. In addition, the District, in its sole discretion, may require a non single family residential User to install a backflow prevention assembly at any meter(s) servicing such a User's property. The District, in its sole discretion, also may require any User to install other backflow prevention assemblies at any fixture in order to prevent contamination of the District's potable water distribution system or if the User's plumbing system poses a high health hazard. A high health hazard is defined by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality as a "crossconnection, potential cross-connection, or other situation involving any substance that could cause death, illness, spread of disease, or has a high probability of causing such effects if introduced into the potable drinking water supply." If the District determines that a User must install a backflow prevention assembly as a protection against a high health hazard, the backflow prevention assembly used must comply with a state approved plumbing code and the plumbing code, if any, required by the County of Bastrop, and must be tested and certified at least annually by a recognized backflow prevention assembly tester. A list of certified backflow

prevention assembly inspectors can be obtained from the local office of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

The User is responsible for insuring that all backflow prevention assemblies are tested upon installation by a recognized backflow prevention assembly tester. If this test is performed by the District's operator or its subcontractor, the cost will be \$75.00, which is due and payable prior to the test. The User is solely responsible for the cost of this test. If the District requires the installation of a backflow prevention assembly in order to prevent a serious threat to the District's public water supply, then the District, in its sole discretion, may immediately terminate service to the User. In that event, service will not be restored until the backflow prevention assembly has been installed and tested and a signed and dated original of a "Backflow Prevention Assembly Test and Maintenance Report" in the form attached to this Rate Order as Exhibit B has been provided to the District's operator.

If the District determines that a backflow prevention assembly must be installed pursuant to this Rate Order for reasons other than to eliminate a serious threat to the District's public water system, the User must install the backflow prevention assembly within five working days after receipt of notice from the District that such installation is required. In addition, the User must provide the District's operator with a signed and dated original of a "Backflow Prevention Assembly Test and Maintenance Report" in the form attached to this Rate Order as Exhibit B within three working days of the installation of the backflow prevention assembly and within three working days of any subsequent repair, maintenance or testing of such assembly. If the User fails to provide the testing certificate within this time, the District, in its discretion, may terminate service to the User pursuant to the terms of this Rate Order. The District's operator will retain such reports for a minimum of three years.

E. <u>Customer Service Inspections.</u> A customer service inspection is required prior to the time the District (i) provides continuous water service to new construction, (ii) provides water service to private plumbing facilities that have been added to existing construction or materially improved or corrected, or (iii) continues service to a User when the District has reason to believe that cross-connections or other unacceptable plumbing practices exist. The cost of such customer service inspection will be the sole responsibility of the User. For Single Family Residential Users, a licensed plumber, a water supply protection specialist licensed by the Texas State Board of Plumbing, or a certified waterworks operator holding an endorsement from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality may perform this customer service inspection. For all other types of service, a water supply protection specialist licensed by the Texas State Board of Plumbing, or a certified waterworks operator holding an endorsement from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality may perform the inspection. If this customer service inspection is performed by the District's operator, the cost will be \$100 for Single Family Residential Users and will be determined on an individual basis for other Users. Customer service inspections include an inspection prior to the pouring of the slab, an inspection prior to the installation of the sheet rock, and a final plumbing inspection. All fees relating to the customer service inspection shall be paid by the User prior to the inspection, and if the inspection is made in connection with new construction, the fee will be collected with the tap fee.

Prior to initiating service to new construction or buildings containing new plumbing fixtures, the User must provide the District's operator with a signed and dated "Customer Service Inspection Certification" in the form attached to this Rate Order as Exhibit C. The District's operator will retain such inspection certifications for a minimum of 10 years. If the User requests a copy of the certification, the District's operator will provide the User with the Certification. In connection with the customer service inspection, the User shall allow its property to be inspected by the District's operator or its subcontractors during normal business hours for possible cross-connections and other unacceptable plumbing practices which violate this Rate Order. Thereafter, the District's operator or its subcontractors may, at the discretion of the District and/or the District's operator, periodically inspect a User's plumbing system during normal business hours for the purpose of identifying possible cross-connections and other unacceptable plumbing practices which violate this Rate Order.

F. <u>Prohibition Against Cross-Connections</u>. No cross-connection between the District's potable water distribution system and a private water system is permitted. Where an actual air gap is not maintained between the public water supply and a private water supply, an approved reduced pressurezone backflow prevention assembly must be properly installed and such assembly must be annually inspected and tested by a certified backflow prevention device tester. By accepting service from the District, all Users agree to allow such annual inspection and testing of backflow prevention assemblies to take place during normal business hours. If any User refuses to allow such annual inspection and testing, service to such User will be discontinued until such inspection and testing is completed.

No connection which allows water to be returned to the District's potable water distribution system is permitted. This includes, but is not limited to, any device pursuant to which water is removed from the District's potable water distribution system, circulated through a User's system for condensing, cooling and heating of fluids or industrial processes, including but not limited to a heat exchange system, and routed back to the District's potable water distribution system.

- G. <u>Notice of Unacceptable Plumbing Practices</u>. The District shall notify the User in writing of any cross-connection or other unacceptable plumbing practice which has been identified during the customers service inspection, the final plumbing inspection, any periodic reinspection, or any other inspection. At its sole cost and expense, the User shall immediately correct any unacceptable plumbing practice on its premises and properly install, test and maintain any backflow prevention device required by the District within two working days of receipt of notice of the improper cross-connection. The User shall provide copies of all testing and maintenance records on such devices to the District within three working days of the testing or maintenance. If the User fails to correct the noted unacceptable plumbing practice, the District may immediately terminate water service or, at the User's sole cost and expense, eliminate the cross-connection or correct the unacceptable plumbing practice.
- H. <u>Plumbing Material Restrictions</u>. The use of the following plumbing materials are prohibited in any and all improvements connected to the District's water system:
 - 1. Any pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than a weighted average of 0.25% lead; and
 - 2. Any solder or flux that contains more than 0.2% lead.
- I. <u>Penalty for Violation</u>. The failure of a User to comply with the terms of this Section will be considered a violation of this Rate Order. If such a violation occurs, or if the District determines the existence of a serious threat to the integrity of the District's water supply, the District, in its sole option, may, in addition to all other legal remedies available to it, including those remedies set out in this Rate Order, immediately terminate service or, at the User's sole cost and expense, install the plumbing fixtures or assemblies necessary to correct the unacceptable plumbing practice. If the District terminates service in order to preserve the integrity of the District's water supply, service will be restored only when the source of the potential contamination no longer exists or until additional safeguards have been taken. Any and all expenses associated with the enforcement of this Section shall be billed to the User.

<u>Section 23</u>: <u>Sewer Regulations</u>. The following regulations apply to all Users of the District's Sanitary Sewer System.

A. <u>Quality of Sewage</u>

- 1. <u>Domestic Waste</u>. Only ordinary liquid and water-carried waste from domestic activities that is amenable to biological treatment and that is discharged from sanitary conveniences of buildings connected to a public sanitary sewer system shall be discharged into the District's sanitary sewer lines. Waste resulting from any process of commerce or industry may not be discharged into the District's sanitary sewer lines except as authorized below.
- 2. <u>Commercial and Industrial Waste</u>. All discharges other than waste described in subsection 1 are prohibited unless the user has applied to and received written authorization from the District for such discharge. The applicant must file a statement with the District containing the following information:
 - (i) Name and address of applicant;
 - (ii) Type of industry, business, activity, or other waste-creative process;
 - (iii) Quantity of waste to be discharged;
 - (iv) Typical analysis of the waste;
 - (v) Type of pretreatment proposed; and
 - (vi) Such other information as the District may request in writing.

The District shall have the right to reject any application for discharge of non-domestic waste into the District's sanitary sewer lines if the District determines in its sole discretion that the proposed discharge may be harmful to the District's sanitary sewer system or the environment. The District also shall have the right in approving any application for the discharge of non-domestic waste to impose any limitations on such discharge that the District determines in its sole discretion to be necessary to protect the District's sanitary sewer system or the environment.

- 3. <u>National Categorical Pretreatment Standard</u>. If a user is subject to a national categorical pretreatment standard pursuant to regulations promulgated by the Environmental Protection Agency under Section 307 of the federal Clean Water Act, the user is prohibited from discharging pollutants into the District's sanitary sewer system in violation of applicable categorical pretreatment standards.
- 4. <u>District Testing; Pretreatment</u>. The District shall have the right to sample and test any user's discharge at the discretion of the District's operator, with no limit as to the frequency of the tests, and to charge

the user for the District's cost of such sampling and testing. The District also shall have the right to require pretreatment, at the user's expense, of any discharge of non-domestic waste if the District determines in its sole discretion that pretreatment of such waste is necessary to protect the District's sanitary sewer system or the environment, even if pretreatment is not otherwise required pursuant to subsection 3 above.

- B. <u>Service Lines</u>
 - 1. "Service line" is defined as the sewer line from the foundation of the house or commercial building to the sewer line owned by the District.
 - 2. Only one service line connection to the District's sanitary sewage collection system is permitted for each residence or commercial building.
 - 3. Only the following types of pipe and fitting materials are approved for constructing service lines. Pipe and fittings in each individual service line will be of identical material.
 - Ductile iron (DI) pipe conforming to AWWA C-151, Class 53 with flanges being Class 125 as shown in ANSI/ASME B16.1 and with rubber joint material conforming to ANSI/ASME C150/A21.50 with polyethylene.
 - Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) non-pressure pipe conforming to D3034, SDR-35 with rubber joint material conforming to ASTM D3212.
 - 4. Minimum sizes of gravity service lines shall be as follows:
 - (i) Residential -- 4 inches in diameter.
 - (ii) Commercial -- 6 inches in diameter.
 - 5. Minimum grades for gravity service lines shall be as follows:
 - (i) 4 inch pipe -- one foot drop per hundred feet (1%).
 - (ii) 6 inch pipe -- eight and three-eights inches drop per hundred feet (0.7%).
 - (iii) 8 inch pipe -- six inches drop per hundred feet (0.50%).

- 6. Maximum grades for gravity service lines shall be as follows:
 - (i) 4 inch pipe -- two and one-half feet drop per hundred feet (2.5%).
 - (ii) 6 inch pipe -- one and one-half feet drop per hundred feet (1.5%).
 - (iii) 8 inch pipe -- one foot drop per hundred feet (1%).
- 7. Minimum size for pressure service lines shall be as follows:
 - (i) Residential 1.25 inches in diameter.
- 8. Construct service lines to true alignment and grade. Warped and sagging lines will not be permitted.
- C. <u>Connection of building sewer outlet to service lines</u>
 - 1 Building tie-on connection will be made directly to the stub-out from the building plumbing at the foundation on all waste outlets.
 - 2. Water-tight adapters of a type compatible with the materials being joined will be used at the point of connection of the service line to the building plumbing. No cement grout materials are permitted.
 - 3. Existing "wye" and stack connections must be utilized for connection of the service line to the sewer main unless an exception is permitted by the District's operator.

D. <u>Fittings and cleanouts, sampling wells, grease traps, and lint traps</u>

- 1. No bends or turns at any point will be greater than 45 degrees.
- 2. Each horizontal service line will be provided with a cleanout at its upper terminal; and each such run of piping which is more than 90 feet in length will be provided with a cleanout for each 90 feet or fraction thereof, in the length of such piping.
- 3. Each cleanout will be installed so that it opens in a direction opposite to the flow of the waste and, except in the case of "wye" branch and end-of-the-line cleanouts, cleanouts will be installed vertically above the flow line of the pipe.

- 4. Cleanout will be made with air-tight mechanical plug.
- 5. Sample wells are required for all non-residential service lines (multifamily service lines are exempt from the requirement for sample wells). The sample well shall be brought to the surface adjacent to the property line. The sample well shall be considered a "cleanout" when figuring spacing between cleanouts as described in D.2 above. All sampling wells shall be installed in accordance with County of Bastrop standards and be approved by the District's operator and engineer.
- 6. All restaurants, school cafeterias, church cafeterias, and other facilities where food is served to the public shall have grease traps installed, in accordance with County of Bastrop standards and that are approved by the District's operator and engineer. Said customers shall provide the District with a copy of an ongoing contract with a licensed hauler for regular, routine pumping and disposal prior to receiving service from the District and a copy of the canceled checks evidencing payment for such regular pumping and disposal shall be provided to the operator of the District's facilities on a regular basis.
- 7. Any customer or owner that has a building or structure with commercial laundry facilities shall install and have in operation lint traps that are approved by the District's operator and engineer.
- E. <u>Connection Permit</u>
 - 1. Application for Sanitary Sewer Service must be filed prior to construction of the service line and the connection fee should accompany this application. (Application forms are available from the District's operating company). Construction must not begin until authorized by the District.
 - 2. When the service line is complete, and prior to backfilling the pipe trench, the applicant for sewer service shall request an inspection of the installation. Requests for inspections shall be made to the District's operator 24 hours in advance of the inspection.
 - 3. The physical connection to the District's sewer main will be made by use of an adapter of a type compatible with materials being joined. The connection shall be water-tight. No cement grout materials are permitted.

- 4. Backfilling of service lines trench must be accomplished within 24 hours of inspection and approval. No debris will be permitted in the trench.
- 5. A connection permit will be granted after inspection confirms that all requirements of these Rules and Regulations have been met.

F. Excluded Flow and Waste

- 1. No waste material which is not biologically degradable will be permitted to be discharged into the District's sewage facilities, including mud and debris accumulated during service line installation.
- 2. The quality of sewage discharged into the District's system must meet all requirements set forth in this Rate Order or any other applicable regulations adopted by the District.
- 3. No downspouts, yard or street drains, or gutters will be permitted to be connected into the District's sanitary sewer facilities.
- 4. The District reserves the right to sample and test any discharges at the discretion of the District's operator or engineer at any time, and to require pretreatment of the discharge at any time at the customer's sole expense based on the result of the discharge test, if it shows that the discharge is not in compliance with this Rate Order, or any other applicable regulations adopted by the District.
- G. Grinder Pump Required. A Grinder Pump shall be required as a condition of providing wastewater service to any User. The User hereby grants the District an easement on the User's property so that the District's representatives can install, maintain, operate and replace the Grinder Pump as determined necessary by the District. The size and configuration of each Grinder Pump shall be determined by the District's operator, and installed by the District on the User's premises. For a Single Family Residential User, the Grinder Pump shall consist of a maximum two horsepower pump, valves and appurtenances, with a tank dimension of three feet in diameter and four feet in depth. The User shall not alter, repair or replace the Grinder Pump, or take any other action with respect to the Grinder Pump not authorized herein. The District will own, maintain, repair and replace the Grinder Pump and the service line from the Grinder Pump to the District's utility line in consideration of the Grinder Pump maintenance fee and compliance with the provisions of this Rate Order. The User will own, maintain, repair and replace the service line connecting the Grinder Pump

to the premises and all of the electrical facilities and work from the premises to the Grinder Pump and the User is responsible for keeping the location thereof accessible and free of obstruction.

H. New water service will not be provided by the District until the requirements herein have been met and written permission has been granted.

Section 24: Penalties for Violation. Any person, corporation or other entity who:

- A. violates any Section of this Rate Order; or
- B. makes unauthorized use of District services or facilities; or
- C. causes damage to District facilities by using such facilities in a manner or for a purpose contrary to the purpose for which such facilities were designed; or
- D. uses or permits the use of any private septic tank or holding tank within the District for wastewater treatment; or
- E. constructs facilities or buildings which are not included in the approved plans for development as set forth in this Rate Order; and
- F. shall be subject to a penalty of up to \$5,000.00 for each breach of the foregoing provisions. Each day that a breach of any provision hereof continues shall be considered a separate breach.

This penalty shall be in addition to the other penalties provided by the laws of the State and to any other legal rights and remedies of the District as may be allowed by law.

<u>Section 25</u>: This Rate Order and all of the provisions herein apply only to utility service to land within the District. The Board of Directors shall determine whether to provide any utility service to areas outside of the District and the terms and conditions for such service.

<u>Section 26</u>: This Rate Order supersedes all prior orders, resolutions, and other actions of the Board concerning fees and charges for water and sewer service. The rates established herein shall be effective as of December 4, 2015.

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS]

ADOPTED May 7, 2021.

/s/ Steve Adamcik President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

/s/ William Tullis Secretary, Board of Directors

(SEAL)



LIST OF EXHIBITS

- Exhibit A Service Agreement
- Exhibit B Backflow Prevention Assembly Test and Maintenance Report
- Exhibit C Customer Service Inspection Certification

EXHIBIT A SERVICE AGREEMENT

- I. **PURPOSE.** Bastrop County Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the "District") is responsible for protecting the drinking water supply from contamination or pollution which could result from improper plumbing practices. The purpose of this service agreement is to notify each customer of the plumbing restrictions which are in place to provide this protection. The District enforces these restrictions to ensure the public health and welfare. Each customer must sign this agreement before the District will begin service. In addition, when service to an existing connection has been suspended or terminated, the District will not re-establish service unless it has a signed copy of this agreement.
- II. **PLUMBING RESTRICTIONS.** In addition to the District's regulations contained in its Rate Order (described below), the following unacceptable plumbing practices are prohibited by State regulations.
 - A. No direct connection between the public drinking water supply and a potential source of contamination is permitted. Potential sources of contamination shall be isolated from the public water system by an air-gap or an appropriate backflow prevention device.
 - B. No cross-connection between the public drinking water supply and a private water system is permitted. These potential threats to the public drinking water supply shall be eliminated at the service connection by the installation of an airgap or a reduced pressure-zone backflow prevention device.
 - C. No connection which allows water to be returned to the public drinking water supply is permitted.
 - D. No pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than a weighted average of 0.25% lead may be used for the installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for human use.
 - E. No solder or flux which contains more than 0.2 percent lead can be used for the installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for human use.
- III. **SERVICE AGREEMENT.** The following are the terms of the service agreement between the District and the undersigned customer.
 - A. The District will maintain a copy of this agreement as long as Customer and/or the premises is connected to the District's water system. The Customer has been provided with a copy of the District's Rate Order including its Regulations Regarding Water and Sewer house Lines and Connections, and agrees to abide by the terms and conditions of the Rate Order, as such may be revised and amended from time to time in accordance with applicable law.

- B. Customer shall allow his/her property to be inspected for possible crossconnections and other unacceptable plumbing practices. These inspections shall be conducted by the District or its designated agent prior to initiating new water service; when there is reason to believe that cross-connections or other unacceptable plumbing practices exist; or after any major changes to the private plumbing facilities. The inspections shall be conducted during the District's normal business hours.
- C. The District shall notify Customer in writing of any cross-connection or other unacceptable plumbing practice which has been identified during the initial inspection or the periodic reinspection.
- D. Customer shall immediately correct any unacceptable plumbing practice on his/her premises.
- E. Customer shall, at his/her expense, properly install, test, and maintain any backflow prevention device required by the District. Copies of all testing and maintenance records shall be provided to the District.
- F. Customer understands and agrees that the District does not guarantee any specific quantity or pressure of water for any purpose whatsoever and that the District is not liable to customer for failure or refusal to furnish any particular amount or pressure of water to Customer at any time.
- G. The Customer shall allow the District access to the premises to install, inspect, maintain, and repair the grinder pump. The inspection shall be conducted during the District's normal business hours. The District shall attempt to notify the Customer 24 hours in advance of any inspection, maintenance or repair of the grinder pump; however, failure to notify the Customer shall not prevent the District's access to the grinder pump for the specified purposes.
- IV. **ENFORCEMENT.** If Customer fails to comply with the terms of the Service Agreement, the District shall, at its option, either terminate service or properly install, test, and maintain an appropriate backflow prevention device at the service connection. Any expenses associated with the enforcement of this Service Agreement shall be billed to Customer.

CUSTOMER'S SIGNATURE:
PRINTED NAME:
DATE:
ADDRESS:

EXHIBIT B

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY TEST AND MAINTENANCE REPORT

¥			- <u></u>	nust be submitted to the	public water supplier for reco	ordkeeping *purposes:
NAME OF PWS	b:	Bastrop County	MUD No. 1			
PWS ID#:	ADDDEGG	0110049				
PWS MAILING		500 N CAPITAL OF TX HWY 1-125 AUSTIN, TX 78746				
PWS CONTAC ADDRESS OF 3		Kim Lucas or Mil	te Bamer			
- 17,183 - 275 Ord - 11,003,863 Ord 80 1		datailad halaw	has been tested on	d maintained og re	avirad by commissi	on regulations
	be operating with			d maintained as re	equired by commission	on regulations
			LOW PREVENT	ION ASSEMBLY	(BPA).	
□ Reduced	Pressure Principl			Ire Principle-Dete		Type II
	Theck Valve (DC)			-	3 3	
	2	· ·		Detector (DCVA-		
Pressure	Vacuum Breaker		Spill-Resistant	Pressure Vacuum		
Manufacturer:	Main:	Bypass:		Size:	101919100000 II Comp	ypass:
Model Number:	Main:	Bypass:		BPA Location:		
Serial Number:	Main:	Bypass:		BPA Serves:		
Reason for test:	New 🔲 E	xisting 🔲	Replacement	Old Model/Ser	al #	
Is the assembly i	installed in accord	lance with manu	facturer recommer	dations and/or loc	al codes?	Yes 🛛 No
Is the assembly i	installed on a non	-potable water su	pply (auxiliary)?			Yes 🛛 No
TEST RESULT				Type II		
ILSI KESCEI	Reduced Pressur	e Principle Asse	mbly (RPBA)	Assembly	PVB &	z SVB
		*				
PASS	D	CVA	Relief Valve	Bypass Check	Air Inlet	Check Valve
FAIL	1 st Check	2 nd Check***		DJPass onten		
Initial Test	Held at psid	Held at psi	d Opened at	Held at psid	Opened at psid	Held at
Date:	Closed Tight	Closed Tight		Closed Tight	Did not open 🛛 🗖	psid
Time:	Leaked	Leaked	Did not	Leaked 🛛	Did it fully open	Leaked 🔲
		1	open [L]		(Yes 🔲 /No 🔲)	
Repairs and	Main:					
Materials						
Used**	Bypass:					
Test After	· · · · ·	Held at psi			Opened at psid	Held at
<u>Repair</u>	Closed Tight	Closed Tight	psid	Closed		psid
Date:				Tight 🔲		
Time:						
Differential pres		umeric reading r	equired for DCVA	A only	N. P. 11	
5 0	sure gauge useu.		Potable:	4	Non-Potable:	
Make/Model:		SN		Date tes	sted for accuracy :	
Remarks:						
Company Name	:		Licensed Tester (Print/Type):	r Name		
Company Addre	Company Address:					
Company Phone #: BPAT License #						
	Company Phone #: Image: BPA1 License # License Expiration Date: Image:					
	1		I LICENSE EXPITA	uon Date:		

The above is certified to be true at the time of testing.

* TEST RECORDS MUST BE KEPT FOR AT LEAST THREE YEARS [30 TAC §290.46(B)] ** USE ONLY MANUFACTURER'S REPLACEMENT PARTS

TCEQ-20700 (Revision 04-04-2019)

EXHIBIT C

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY TEST AND MAINTENANCE REPORT

The following form must be completed for ea		Contraction and the second sec	nust be submitted to the	public water supplier for rec	ordkeeping *purposes:
NAME OF PWS: PWS ID#:	Bastrop County	MUD No. 1			
PWS MAILING ADDRESS:	0110049				
PWS CONTACT PERSON:		OF TX HWY 1-125 AU	STIN, TX 78746		
ADDRESS OF SERVICE:	Kim Lucas or Mik	e Bamer			
The backflow prevention assemb	lv detailed below	has been tested an	d maintained as re	equired by commissi	on regulations
and is certified to be operating w			a mamanea as re	iquireu o j commissi	on regulations
	PE OF BACKFI		ION ASSEMBLY	Y (BPA):	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Reduced Pressure Princip		1	re Principle-Dete		Type II 🗖
Double Check Valve (DC	CVA)	_	Detector (DCVA-		
Pressure Vacuum Breake			Pressure Vacuum		Туренц
Main Main	Drmaga	1923	C.	Main: B	
Manufacturer: Main: Model Number: Main:	Bypass: Bypass:		Size: BPA Location:	LI LI	ypass:
Serial Number: Main:	Bypass:		BPA Location. BPA Serves:		
Serial Number. Main.	Bypass.		DIA Serves.		
	r <u>—</u> 1	I	_1		
	Existing	1	Old Model/Seri		1 11 1
Is the assembly installed in acco	rdance with manuf	acturer recommen	dations and/or loc	cal codes?	Yes 🛛 No
Is the assembly installed on a no	n-potable water su	pply (auxiliary)?			Yes 🛛 No
TEST RESULT			Type II		
Reduced Pressu	re Principle Asser	mbly (RPBA)	Assembly	PVB 8	& SVB
			· · ·		
	DCVA	Relief Valve	Bypass Check	Air Inlet	Check Valve
FAIL D 1 st Check	2 nd Check***		- 71		
Initial Test Held at psi	d Held at psi	d Opened at	Held at psid	Opened at psid	Held at
Date: Closed Tight	1	1	Closed Tight \square	Did not open	psid
Time:		Did not	Leaked	Did it fully open	Leaked 🛛
		open 🔲		(Yes /No)	1 1
Repairs and Main:					
Materials					
Used** Bypass:					
	d Held at psi	,		Opened at psid	Held at
Repair Closed Tight	Closed Tight	psid	Closed	100 km	psid
Date:	4 (100-300) ¥		Tight 🗖		
Time:			100 001		
	numeric reading r		A only		
Differential pressure gauge used:		18	Potable: Non-Potable:		
Make/Model: SN: Date tested for accuracy :					
Remarks:					
Company Name:					
(Print/Type):					
Company Address: Licensed Tester Name (Signature):					
Company Phone #: BPAT License # License Territorian Deter					
License Expiration Date: Image: Control of the state of					

The above is certified to be true at the time of testing. * TEST RECORDS MUST BE KEPT FOR AT LEAST THREE YEARS [30 TAC §290.46(B)] ** USE ONLY MANUFACTURER'S REPLACEMENT PARTS

TCEQ-20700 (Revision 04-04-2019)